
Please ask for:
Linda Coote
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
5340

29th March 2021

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee
DATE: 8 April 2021
TIME: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillor Blackman (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Batty (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Beavis
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Furlong
Councillor Herridge

Councillor Hylands
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mrs Jones
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Scard

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Standards and Governance Committee
8 April 2021

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All members present are required to disclose, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary 
interest or personal interest in any items(s) being considered at this 
meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to receive a deputation(s) on a 
matter which is before the meeting of the Committee provided that 
notice of the intended deputation and its object shall have been 
received by the Borough Solicitor by noon on Tuesday 6th April 2021. 
The total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall 
not exceed 10 minutes)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Committee is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Committee provided that notice of such Question(s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 9th February 2021)

6.  ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 

To present the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22.

7.  GIFTS & HOSPITALITY- MEMBERS 

That the Committee approve the adoption of the Gifts and 
Hospitalities Protocol for Elected Members.

8.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Standards and Governance Committee
11 February 2021

1

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WAS HELD ON 11 FEBRUARY 2021

Councillors Ms Ballard, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Blackman, Chegwyn, Mrs Furlong, Herridge, 
Hylands, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Mrs Prickett and Scard

27. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none

29. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020  be signed as a 
true and correct record

30. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none

31. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none

32. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 28TH JANUARY 2021 

Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor updating the Committee 
on the progress of the Audit Plan 2020/21.

Members were advised that good progress had been made and that testing is now 
complete.

Members were advised that as a result of gaps identified in such areas of GDPR as Asset 
Registers and Data Sharing Agreements, an information governance group consisting of 
Paul Grant, David Eland and Lisa Young would be meeting fortnightly to ensure these 
areas were addressed, though it was noted that the deadline for various required actions of 
end of February 2021 would not be achieved and the group will liaise with the Chief Internal 
Auditor requesting new deadlines.

Members were advised that the audit noted in the report regarding Covid procurement, was 
specifically around spend relating to Covid and there were issues noted which highlighted 
some non-compliance. In order to make improvements in the procurement area, a more 
general spend procurement audit is currently being undertaken and the results are due to 
be presented at a future meeting.

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee
11 February 2021

2

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report.

33. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

Consideration was given to a report by Ernst & Young summarizing the findings of
their 2019/20 audit.

Members were given a briefing on the Audit Fees, which are still being negotiated with the 
Borough Treasurer. The costs involved in the additional work related to Covid were 
explained.

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report.

34. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.25 pm



Purpose

To present the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 to the committee for approval, as set 
out in Appendix A.

Recommendations

The members approve the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix A.

1. Background & Purpose

1.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 has been drawn up in accordance with the agreed 
Audit Strategy, approved by this Committee on 4th September 2019, following 
consultation with Section Heads and the Chief Executive. The Plan is revised quarterly 
to take account of any changes in risks/ priorities, in accordance with the Strategy

2. Report

2.1      Appendix A is the proposed Internal Audit Plan 2021/22.

3. Conclusion

3.1       That the Committee approve the Internal Audit 2021/22.

Financial Services 
comments:

Nil

Legal Services comments: Nil
Crime and Disorder: Nil
Equality and Diversity: Nil
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service.

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through 
delivering an effective and high quality governance evaluation 
and monitoring.

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee
Date of Meeting: 8th April 2021
Title: Internal Audit Plan 2021/22
Author: Chief Internal Auditor
Status: FOR APPROVAL

Agenda Item 6



high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2021/22

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor



 

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan

Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor



Page 2

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y

This document sets out Internal Audit’s programme of work for 2021/22, to provide Audit Committee with the opportunity to comment on the proposed 
coverage.  

The Plan is informed by:

 Legal requirements, specifically including grant sign offs by Internal Audit.
 Industry good practice and sector trends.
 Outcomes of prior Internal Audit reviews, for example all  2020/21 higher risk expectations will be followed up during 2021/22. 
 Consultation with the Council’s senior management, including the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive and Borough Treasurer and Section 151 

Officer.

Primarily the Plan is risk based, although a number of fundamental areas, for example key financial processes such as Payroll, Accounts Payable and 
Receivable are reviewed every year.

Detail regarding the standards applicable to Internal Audit are set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards:

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards 

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


Page 3

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

P r o p o s e d  A u d i t s
Audits Type Provisional Audit Scope Strategic Risks Corporate Outcomes

Housing

Homelessness / Temporary 
Accommodation

Full Review of key controls and changes due to 
demand

RISK02, RISK03, 
RISK06, RISK08

GBC01, GBC03, GBC05

Housing Maintenance Full Review of key controls and processes RISK01, RISK03, 
RISK06

GBC03, GBC05

Voids Full Review of key controls and processes RISK01, RISK06 GBC04, GBC05

Housing Lettings Full Review of key controls and processes RISK01, RISK03 GBC03, GBC05

Hostels Full Review of key controls and processes RISK01, RISK03, 
RISK06, RISK08

GBC03, GBC05

Human Resources

Workforce Planning Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK03, RISK08 GBC05

Absence Management Full Review of key controls and processes RISK03 GBC05

Streetscene

Coastline Water Safety Full Review of key controls and processes RISK01, RISK04 GBC02, GBC03

Leisure Centre - Profit Share Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK01, RISK08 GBC04, GBC05

Grounds Maintenance Full Review of key controls and processes following 
service being brought in house

RISK01, RISK04, 
RISK06

GBC05

Streetscene Enforcement Full Review of key controls and processes RISK02, RISK03 GBC05

Legal

FOI Full Review of key controls and processes RISK02 GBC05



Page 4

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

Information Asset Register / GDPR Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK01, RISK02, 
RISK07

GBC05

Finance

Council Tax & NNDR Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK03, 
RISK07, RISK08

GBC01, GBC02, GBC04, 
GBC05

Housing Benefits Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK03, 
RISK05, RISK07

GBC01, GBC03

Procurement Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK01, RISK02, 
RISK08

GBC05

Payroll & Expenses Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK05, 
RISK07

GBC05

Accounts Payable Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK05, 
RISK07

GBC04, GBC05

Accounts Receivable Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK05, 
RISK07

GBC04, GBC05

Purchase Cards Full Fundamental Audit RISK01, RISK05 GBC05

Covid Income Loss Grant Full Grant Verification RISK01, RISK03 GBC05

Test and Trace Payment Grant Full Grant Verification RISK01, RISK03 GBC05

Council Tax Support Grant Full Grant Verification RISK01, RISK03 GBC05

Customer Services

Corporate Complaints Full Review of key controls and processes RISK02, RISK03 GBC05

Chief Executive

Governance Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK03, RISK04, 
RISK08

GBC05

Social Media Follow-up Follow up on previous audit RISK02, RISK07 GBC05



Page 5

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

Time recording Tensor Full Review of key controls, processes and efficiency RISK03, RISK05 GBC05

Website (compliance accessibility) Full Review to ensure compliance with appropriate 
legislation 

RISK02 GBC03, GBC05

Social Media Surveillance Full Review to ensure compliance with appropriate 
legislation

RISK01, RISK02 GBC05

Project Management Corporate Full Advisory audit on new project management 
processes

RISK01, RISK04, 
RISK08

GBC05

COVID 19 Business Grants Post Assurance Full Overall review on Business Grants RISK01, RISK02 GBC05

Partnerships Full Strategic review on key partnerships RISK03 GBC05

COVID Assurance Full Overall review on governance issues arising from 
Covid Pandemic

RISK01, RISK02, 
RISK03

GBC05

IT

IT Access Controls Full Review of key controls and processes RISK03 GBC05

IT Acquisition & Procurement Full Review of key controls, processes and best value RISK01 GBC05

MS Teams Full Review of key controls, processes and security RISK03 GBC05



Page 6

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

R i s k s
Ref Risk

RISK01 Financial Risk

RISK02 Legal Risk

RISK03 Service Risk

RISK04 Project Risk

RISK05 Fraud Risk

RISK06 Health and Safety Risk



Page 7

2021/22 Internal  Audit  Plan

O b j e c t i v e s
Ref Outcome

GBC01 Raise Aspirations

GBC02 enhance the environment

GBC03 empower the residents

GBC04 develop the economy

GBC05 deliver effective services



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 
Date of Meeting: 8 April 2001
Title: Members Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol
Author: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
Status: For decision 

PURPOSE

That the Committee approve the adoption of the Gifts and 
Hospitalities Protocol for Elected Members. 

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee agrees to adopt the revised Gifts and 
Hospitalities Protocol attached to this report with immediate effect. 

1 Background

1.1 This report considers the revised Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol 
attached to this report and recommends its adoption.

2 Report

2.1

2.2

The Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol has been produced to support 
Elected Members to meet the requirements of the Code of Conduct 
for Members.  

The protocol details guidance that reflects the Code of Conduct 
requirement for all Members to declare Gifts or Hospitality of at least 
£50. 

2.3

2.4

The protocol is comprehensive and details the reporting process to 
the Monitoring Officer. 

The Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol for Members is attached at 
Appendix A. 

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 The absence of a revised or updated protocol does not absolve 
Members from responsibility for reporting and updating their register 
of gifts and hospitality. However, it is considered that the need for an 
updated protocol providing guidance to Members is desirable and 
will assist Members in the discharge of their public duties.

4 Conclusion

4.1 The Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol for Members has been revised to 

Agenda Item 7



2

reflect the reorganisation of the Council. 

Financial Services 
comments:

None

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained in the report

Equality and Diversity This report seeks implement a revised Gifts and 
Hospitalities Protocol for Members. 

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:
Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: Section 3
Background papers: None
Appendices A – Revised Gifts and Hospitalities Protocol for 

Members

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor and Monitoring 
Officer



Members’ Gifts and Hospitality protocol

1. Meaning of gifts and hospitality

(a) The expressions 'gifts' and 'hospitality' have wide and evolving meanings and no 
conclusive definition is either possible or desirable.

(b) Gosport Borough Council shall interpret gifts and hospitality to include:

 Gifts of any goods or services;

 The opportunity to acquire any goods or services freely or at a discount or 
other terms not available to the general public;

 The offer of food, drink, accommodation or entertainment or the opportunity 
to attend any cultural or sporting event on terms not available to the 
general public.

(c) Where the gift or hospitality has an estimated value at least £50 (in accordance 
with Paragraph 5 of this Protocol), it must be registered using the proforma 
appended to this protocol. Where the gift or hospitality has an estimated value below 
£50, you should consider whether declaration would be appropriate in the 
circumstances.

(d) When considering whether to declare, you should:

1. define gifts and hospitality widely; and
2. ask yourself "would I have been given this if I was not a member of the 

Council"? and "what was in the mind of the giver"?; and
3. always register a gift or hospitality (subject to financial limits) if it could be seen 

as something given because of your position.

(e) If you are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, it is recommended 
that you register it or speak to the Monitoring Officer.

(f) You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your

role as a Member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family.

2. General caution

(a) The fundamental principle must always be that any offer of a gift or hospitality 
should be treated with great care and carefully considered.

(b) Your prime duty as a Member is to ensure that there is no conflict of interest in

the performance of your duties.

(c) Treat with caution any gift or hospitality that is made to you personally. Your 
personal reputation and that of the Council can be seriously jeopardised by the

inappropriate acceptance by you of a gift or hospitality.



(d) You should consider carefully all the circumstances surrounding the offer of a gift 
or hospitality, including:

 the scale

 amount of the offer

 potential frequency

 the source

(e) Also be sensitive to the timing of the offer in relation, for example, to decisions 
which the Council may be taking, affecting those making the offer.

(f) You should usually avoid hospitality in situations where you would be the sole 
guest or at the least treat such situations with particular care.

3. Member's decision

(a) The decision for you in every case is whether or not it is appropriate to accept 
any gift or hospitality that might be offered to you, having regard to how it might be 
perceived by an ordinary member of the public.

(b) The rules within this protocol do not cover every circumstance as to what is 
appropriate or inappropriate.

(c) To refuse may cause misunderstanding or offence. However to accept may give 
rise to questions of impropriety or conflict of interest, which are likely to be of more 
significance to you when making your decision.

(d) When you need to decide whether to accept hospitality, you must ask yourself 
some basic questions, for example:

 is there a benefit to the Council in accepting the invitation?

 is the entertainment lavish?

 are you accepting too much hospitality from the same source?

 whether just your attendance at an event might be open to interpretation as 
a signal of support?

In any case of doubt, advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 

4. Requirements

(a) You must Register, the receipt of any gifts or hospitality with an estimated value 
of at least £50, which are received and accepted by you (You may have to estimate 
the value of the gifts or hospitality):

1. in the conduct of the business of the Council, or
2. the business of the office to which you have been elected; or
3. appointed or when you are acting as a representative of the Council.

(b) You must also register the source of the gift or hospitality.



(c) You must register the gift or hospitality within 28 days of its receipt/acceptance.

(d) If you are dealing with Council business at a meeting (or otherwise) where the 
donor of the gift or hospitality is affected, Part 4, 4.1( E) of the Council’s Code of 
Conduct for Members must be adhered to. 

(e) Where any gift (no matter the value) is accepted, it may be advisable (depending 
on the circumstances) to inform the donor that acceptance will not confer any 
advantage for that donor in his/her dealings with the Council.

The following link will provide access to the proforma to be completed when 
registering receipt of gifts and hospitality. The completed proforma should be 
forwarded to Members Services:

5. Series of gifts or hospitality adding up to £50 or more in value

(a) If you receive:

 a gift or hospitality; or

 a series of gifts or hospitality from the same source that add up to £50 or 
more, then this must be registered on the Register of Interests as an 
accumulation in a municipal year.

(b) You may have to estimate the value of the gifts or hospitality.

6. Gifts and hospitality below the £50 threshold

You can still register any gift or hospitality you receive which you estimate to be 
below the £50 threshold should you consider that in all the circumstances this would 
be appropriate and in your best interests.

7. What to avoid

(a) In deciding whether it is appropriate to accept any gift or hospitality, you may 
want to apply the following principles:

1. do not accept a gift or hospitality as an inducement or reward for anything you 
do as a Member. If you have any suspicion that the motive behind the gift or 
hospitality is an inducement or reward, you must decline it. 'Reward' includes 
remuneration, reimbursement and fee;

2. do not accept a gift or hospitality of significant value or whose value is excessive 
in all the circumstances;

3. do not accept a gift or hospitality if you believe it will put you under any 
obligation to the provider as a consequence;

4. do not solicit any gift or hospitality and avoid giving any perception of doing so;
5. be very cautious in accepting a gift or hospitality, if acceptance might be open to 

misinterpretation e.g. from persons in litigation with the Council, bidding for work 
from the Council or applying for any sort of license or consent.

(b) It is a criminal offence to corruptly to solicit or receive any gift, reward or 
advantage as an inducement to doing or forbearing to do anything in respect of any 

http://intranet/home/members/members-forms/declaration-of-financial-and-other-interests-form/
http://intranet/home/members/members-forms/declaration-of-financial-and-other-interests-form/


transaction involving the Council. It is therefore particularly important that great 
caution is exercised in receiving any hospitality or gifts from contractors of the 
Council.

(c) Cash or monetary gifts should always be refused without exception and the 
refusal notified to the Monitoring Officer.

(d) It is a well-established and recognised rule that no Councillor or other public 
servant should accept gifts, hospitality, or services from anyone, which would or 
might appear to place him/her under an obligation.

8. Mayor

(a) There are no special rules for those who serve as Mayor.

(b)Gifts that are clearly made to the Authority, for example a commemorative goblet 
which is kept on display in the Authority's offices, do not need to be registered in the 
member's register of gifts and hospitality. However, such gifts ought to be recorded 
by the Authority for audit purposes. Although the Mayor may attend many social 
functions the office holder is not exempt from the requirement to register hospitality.

(c) Where the Mayor is invited to social functions or gifted with presents in the 
capacity of the "Mayor" he/she will not be required to register the gifts or hospitality 
received/accepted in this role. Where the Member acting as Mayor, receives any 
gifts or hospitality in his/her capacity of a Member, there is a requirement to register 
such gifts and hospitality. The question a Member needs to ask themselves is 
"Would I have received this hospitality even if I were not the Mayor?" If the answer is 
yes then it must be registered.

9. Gifts and hospitality declined

There is no requirement to register gifts and hospitality offered but declined. 
However, cash or monetary gifts that are declined should, as indicated in 7 (c) 
above, be notified to the Monitoring Officer. In addition, as a matter of good practice, 
it would be advisable to inform the Monitoring Officer particularly if they are of value. 
When gifts or hospitality are declined, the person making the offer or should be 
courteously but firmly informed of the procedures and standards operating within the 
Council, which prevent the gift or hospitality from being accepted.

10. Bribery

What is Bribery?

Bribery is defined as giving someone a financial or other advantage to encourage 
that person to perform their functions or activities improperly or to reward that person 
for having already done so. In other words bribery is an inducement or reward 
offered, promised or provided to gain personal, commercial, regulatory or contractual 
advantage.

The Bribery Act



The Bribery Act 2010 ('the Act') came into force in July 2011. It was introduced to 
update and enhance UK law on bribery including foreign bribery.

The Act contains four substantive criminal offences, which are:

 bribing another person;

 receiving a bribe;

 bribing a foreign public official; and

 a corporate offence of a commercial organisation failing to prevent bribery.

The Act applies across the UK, covers the private and public sectors and relates to 
any function of a public nature, or any activity connected with a business, performed 
in the course of employment, or performed on behalf of an organisation.

The Act extends to employees, members, agents and subsidiaries of the 
organisation and can also include contractors to the extent that they perform 
services for or on behalf of the organisation. It is less likely to include sub-
contractors.

The scope of the last of the four offences is considerable. However, an organisation 
can provide a defence to it by showing it had adequate procedures in place to 
prevent bribery from taking place (see below for what constitutes 'adequate 
procedures').

Penalties for falling foul of the Act for individuals can be severe with 7-10 years 
imprisonment in the worst case scenario. Organisations which fail to take all 
reasonable steps to prevent bribery taking place face unlimited fines.

Member Responsibilities

The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption are 
the responsibility of all those working for the council or under its control. All members 
(and staff) are required to avoid activity that breaches the provisions of the Act.

This responsibility manifests itself in the council's Code of Conduct for Members 
which requires councillors to behave in a manner which is consistent with a number 
of principles including:-

1. the principle of 'Integrity' in that holders of public office should not place 
themselves under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or 
organisations that might seek to influence them in the performance of their 
official duties; and

2. the principle of 'objectivity' namely that in carrying out public business, including 
making public appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals 
for rewards or benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.

It is a criminal offence for a person corruptly to give or offer any gift, reward or 
advantage as an inducement or reward to you for doing or forbearing to do anything 
as a member of the Council.

If in the course of their duties someone approaches a member with a view to 
influencing the outcome of a project, procurement or decision you must immediately 



report to the Monitoring Officer any circumstances where an inappropriate gift or 
hospitality has been offered to you. You may thereafter be required to assist the 
Police in providing evidence.

Similarly, if a member receives information that an act of bribery has taken place 
they should take the same steps.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Annual Audit Plan
	6.Appendix A - GBC-2122 Audit Plan

	7 Gifts & Hospitality- Members
	Gifts and hospitality for Members protocol


